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Ross C. Wilkin

Vice President of Finance
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600 Mayer Street

Bridgeville, PA 15017

Re:  Universal Stainless & Alloy Products, Inc.
Form 10-K for Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015
Filed February 24, 2016
File No. 0-25032

Dear Mr. Wilkin:

We have reviewed your filing and have the following comments. In some of our
comments, we may ask you to provide us with information so we may better understand your
disclosure.

Please respond to this letter within ten business days by amending your filing, by
providing the requested information, or by advising us when you will provide the requested
response. If you do not believe our comments apply to your facts and circumstances or do not
believe an amendment is appropriate, please tell us why in your response.

After reviewing any amendment to your filing and the information you provide in
response to these comments, we may have additional comments.

Form 10-K for Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015

1. To the extent that future non-compliance of any debt covenant is reasonably likely,
including debt covenants impacting the level of the interest rate, please disclose and
discuss the specific terms of any such covenants, as well as the terms of your most
significant and restrictive covenants. Your disclosures should include actual
ratios/amounts for each period and the most restrictive required ratios/amounts. This will
allow readers to understand how much cushion there is between the required ratios and
the actual ratios. They should also provide quantified analysis of potential changes in the
interest rates applicable to your debt. Please show the specific computations used to
arrive at the actual ratios with corresponding reconciliations to US GAAP amounts, if
necessary.
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Your disclosure should also address the risks and potential consequences of not
complying with your debt covenants. See Sections 1.D and IV.C of the SEC Interpretive
Release No. 33-8350.

We urge all persons who are responsible for the accuracy and adequacy of the disclosure in
the filing to be certain that the filing includes the information the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 and all applicable Exchange Act rules require. Since the company and its management are
in possession of all facts relating to a company’s disclosure, they are responsible for the accuracy
and adequacy of the disclosures they have made.

In responding to our comments, please provide a written statement from the company
acknowledging that:

e the company is responsible for the adequacy and accuracy of the disclosure in the filing;

e staff comments or changes to disclosure in response to staff comments do not foreclose
the Commission from taking any action with respect to the filing; and

e the company may not assert staff comments as a defense in any proceeding initiated by
the Commission or any person under the federal securities laws of the United States.

You may contact Tracie Mariner, Staff Accountant, at (202) 551-3744 if you have
questions regarding comments on the financial statements and related matters. You may contact
me at (202) 551-3355 with any other questions.

Sincerely,

/s/ Terence O’Brien
Terence O’Brien
Branch Chief

Office of Manufacturing and
Construction



